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City of Lynchburg 
Procurement Division 
900 Church Street 
Lynchburg, Virginia  24504 
Telephone No.: (434) 455-3970 
Fax No.: (434) 845-0711                     
                                                    Addendum for Request for Proposal 

Biosolids Land Application for the Lynchburg Regional Wastewater Treatment Plant 
 

2016-001 
 
Date: 05/22/2015 
From: Lisa Moss, Buyer VCA 
RE: Addendum No.  2 
 
This Addendum supplements and amends the original Plans and Specifications and shall be taken into 
account in preparing proposals and shall become a part of the Contract Documents. The Offeror shall 
indicate receipt of this Addendum and all previously issued Addenda on the Title Page.   
 

 
1. Does the City have 2014 volumes of biosolids landfilled? Or any additional subsequent data for the 

Summary of Sludge Disposal table provided on pg. 16 of the RFP?  
Please see attachment with updated, corrected volumes. 

 
2. RFP Section III, Scope of Services, pg. 3:  What are the hours of access to the LRWWTP? 

Normally Mon-Fri 6am-6pm however this is subject to change if vendor demonstrates a 
reasonable need to operate outside of these hours due to travel time, land application 
schedules, etc. 

 
3. RFP Section IV, Proposal Preparation, pg. 6:  The proposal sections outlined in Proposal Preparation 

seems to be missing a section 6.  The outline goes from “5. Ability to Provide the Scope of Work 
Required” to “7. Costs for estimated volumes”.  Is this just a misnumbering of subsections or is there 
an intended section 6 that is missing?  
This was a numbering error. 

 
4. Please confirm that prevailing wage requirements do not apply to this scope of work.  

No prevailing wage requirements apply to this scope of work. 
 

5    On any given trip, the amount of fuel in the tanks of the road tractor will affect its empty weight. For 
DOT compliance, Nutri-Blend will get the weight of the road tractor with full fuel tanks to assure we 
do not exceed 80,000 lbs. In reality, road tractors will arrive at the plant with varying amounts of fuel 
in their tanks. Do you expect that each road tractor will be weighed prior to picking up a loaded 
trailer? 
 Each load will be weighed before leaving the WWTP via the adjacent landfill scale and 
adjustment to the weight will be handled by plant staff if needed. If the scale is not available, 
vendor will provide certified scales or the previous 7 day average will be used (pending DEQ 
approval). The vendor is responsible for certifying weight is within the legal limit before 
leaving the WWTP. 

 
6. We assume that each of the eleven biosolids trailers has a numerical identifier and a correct empty 

weight. Is this correct?  
This is not currently used as a method to determine overall weight. Currently, we estimate the 
weight by volume and verify on the landfill scales if needed before leaving the WWTP. 

 
7. Is there an annual CPI adjustment associated with this contract?   

No, the City is going to utilize the attached Fuel Adjustment Allowance as attached below. 
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8. The RFP does not mention a fuel adjustment allowance. Because fuel is a significant cost component 

of this proposed hauling contract and because petroleum prices are so volatile, we suggest it might be 
in Lynchburg’s interest to allow a fuel cost adjustment mechanism. Will Lynchburg consider this, or 
some other fuel adjustment? (See Lynchburg RFP 12-749, which included a Fuel Adjustment 
Allowance in Addendum 3.)   
Please find Fuel Adjustment Allowance attached below. 

 
9. The language of the RFP on page 3 of 14 concerning inclement weather conditions is somewhat 

confusing. It appears you assume that using the successful bidder to legally store biosolids will be 
more cost effective than Lynchburg’s hauling the biosolids to a landfill. Without the bidder having 
the liability of having to use a landfill, his cost exposure is greatly reduced since land application is 
less expensive than landfilling. Yet on page 7 of 14 you request only the cost of hauling the biosolids 
to the approved storage facility. Would you consider changing the language on page 7 related to 
storage to consider the hauling cost to the storage facility including the cost of reloading, 
transporting, the biosolids and land applying the biosolids? Can Nutri-Blend assume you will use 
their costs of hauling, re-hauling and land application vs. cost of hauling to a landfill? 
The intent of the language in the RFP is to allow the City other disposal options if needed due 
to limited onsite storage, inclement weather or the vendor’s inability to remove the solids. It is 
assumed that the pricing for storage will include the cost of reloading, transporting, and land 
applying the biosolids. 

 
10.  Nutri-Blend assumes that Lynchburg is responsible for insurance coverage on Lynchburg’s eleven 

trailers. Otherwise we would have to enter into a lease agreement which would add to the cost of our 
bid. 

      We currently have other vendors using our trailers with no separate leasing agreement. 
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                         City of Lynchburg  
             OPTIONAL ADJUSTMENT FOR FUEL 

 
The City will adjust monthly progress payments up or down as appropriate for cost changes in fuel 
used on specific services as agreed upon by the Offeror and the City. The Offeror shall clearly identify 
all services which require fuel and therefore a potential adjustment in  their proposal. 

 
The monthly index price to be used in the administration of this provision will be calculated by the 
City from the Diesel fuel prices published by the U.  S. Department of Energy, Energy Information 
Administration on highway diesel prices, for the Lower Atlantic region. The monthly index price will be 
the price for diesel fuel calculated by averaging each of the weekly posted prices for that particular 
month. 

 
For the purposes of this provision, the base index price will be calculated using the data from the 
month preceding the receipt of bids. 

 
The current monthly quantity for services provided for fuel adjustment will be multiplied by the 
appropriate fuel factor to determine the gallons of fuel to be cost adjusted. The amount of 
adjustment per gallon will be the net difference between the current index price and the base index 
price. Computation for adjustment will be made as follows: 

 
S = (E - B) QF 

 
Where; S = Monetary amount of the adjustment (plus or minus) B = 

Base index price 
E = Current index price 
Q = Quantity of individual units of work F = 
Appropriate fuel factor 

 
In the event any of the base fuel prices in this contract increase more than 100 percent (i.e. fuel prices 
double), the City will review each affected service and give the awarded Offeror written notice if work 
is to stop on any service being provided. The City reserves the right to reduce, eliminate or 
renegotiate the pricing for remaining services. 

 
Any amounts resulting from fuel adjustment will not be included in the total cost of work for 
determination of progress or for extension of contract time. 



Summary of Sludge disposal from the WWTP Weekly
All numbers except yearly total are based on calendar weeks Sunday through Saturday

# 1 #2

Year AVG Max Total AVG Max Total AVG Max Total AVG Avg

2012 438 560 22,767 353 475 18,352 85 165 4,415 31.30% 29.80%
2013 444 579 23,051 367 495 19,069 77 145 3,981 28.60% 29.05%
2014 446 532 22,757 359 462 18,295 87 150 4,462 28.10% 28.50%

Avg 443 557 22,858 360 477 18,572 83 153 4,286 29% 29%
Max 446 579 23,051 367 495 19,069 87 165 4,462 31% 30%

5/20/15 ‐ Corrected totals do not include loose materials (Screenings, grit, etc.)

 The data for this table has not been verified for accuracy and should not be used for reporting purposes it is for 
projections and budgetary  estimates.   % solid concentrations averages are mathematically averaged not going 
back to original weights. 

Centrifuge 

Avg % Solids 

** All numbers include approximately 1 ton of lime per 
day

Maplewood Amelia

All Sludge (Wet Tons)

Out of Plant Lynchburg Regional Landfill

Sludge To (Wet Tons) Other Disposal (Wet Tons)


